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1. Q: On page 54 of the RFP manual (00-California_CEUS_manual_2016-01-08.docx), it states that form 7a is a required form.  Form 7a states that it is not a contract document.  Will the information in form 7a be used to calculate the loaded hourly rate?  Will this information be used to set rates for contracting?
A:	Attachment 7a will be used for the purposes of calculating the loaded hourly rate under cost criteria, located in the Scoring Criteria Worksheet. While this form will not be included as part of the official contract budget, the classifications and direct labor rates that are included on this form should match those used for the Direct Labor form, and for which will be the official classifications and rates used and billed for during the contract term.
2. Form 7a can be used to calculate the loaded hourly rates, which are one of the inputs for the weighted hourly rates calculation.  The second input for the weighted hourly rates calculation is the % of agreement effort.  The RFP does not state how this will be calculated or where this information is to be recorded in the proposal.  Is the % of agreement effort equivalent to the individual’s share of total contract hours?  If so, will the hours the CEC uses to calculate the % of agreement effort be the hours listed in the # of hours column on the direct labor tab?
A:	The anticipated percent of agreement effort for each individual is the percent of the total agreement expected to be completed by a particular individual or classification. The sum of all percentages must equal 100%. The individual’s % of Agreement Effort will also be factored in the evaluation of the team qualifications and methodology. The % of Agreement Effort must be consistent with the described duties of each individual or classification. This information will be recorded on Attachment 7  Budget Forms (Tabs Att 7a and Att 7b). Att 7a and its instructions have been revised and Att 7b and its instructions have been added as a separate worksheet within Attachment 7 Budget Forms in Addendum 2 to include this information. 
3. Section G on page 54 of the RFP manual states that the Prime Contractor and each subcontractor need to fill out Attachment 7 and 7a. However, on the tab called “Category Budget” in Attachment 7, it states that only subcontracts containing $100,000 or more of CEC funds or 25% of the total awarded funds must complete a full set of budget forms. Do all subcontractors need to fill out the budget forms or only subcontractors with greater than $100,000 or greater than 25% of the awarded funds?
A:	A separate set of complete budget forms, including the full set of worksheets, is required for the Bidder (Prime Contractor) and for all subcontracts. The exception is the worksheet located on Att 7b, which is required from the Bidder only. The instructions for the budget spreadsheets have been revised in Addendum 2 to clarify these requirements.
4. If subcontractors with less than $100,000 and less than 25% of the awarded funds do not need to fill out Attachment 7 and 7a, does that mean they are not included in the weighted loaded hourly rate calculation?
A:	Please see answer to Question #3.
5. Please provide an illustrative example of scoring methodology for match funds analogous to the illustrative example provided for the weighted loaded hourly rate calculations (pages 61-62 of the RFP manual).
A:		Bidders who pass with an overall score of 70 points or more, and who also meet the requirements for demonstrating match funding, may receive up to 5 preference points based on the criteria below:
· Up to 3 points for this criterion will be awarded based on the percentage of match funds relative to the proposed budget. This ratio will be multiplied by 3 to yield the points. 
For example: If the proposed budget is $1,000,000, and the Bidder pledged $500,000 in match funding, the match funding ratio is 0.50 (500,000/1,000,000 = .50)
Multiply the ratio by 3 (3 x 0.50 = 1.5), and round to the nearest whole number = 2. The proposal will be awarded 2 points for this criterion.
· The remaining 2 points for this criterion will be based on the level of commitment, dollar value justification, and funding replacement strategy described in the Bidder’s match funding commitment letter (see Attachment 10). The proposal scoring scale in this solicitation will be used to rate this criterion.
6. If a Bidder proposes to provide “gifted” hours from themselves or a subcontractor, where should these hours be accounted for in the proposal and supporting documentation? As match funds? As “no-cost” labor in weighted loaded average rate calculation and associated workbooks? 
A:	This would be shown as Match Funds on the budget forms as applicable.
7. For costing purposes, should proposals assume the collection of gas-related information for sites served by dual-fuel IOUs, i.e., PG&E and SDG&E?
A:	The $8 million that is immediately available can only be used to fund electric, IOU-related work (Tasks 1, 3, 4, 5, 9, and 10). Unfortunately, there is no guarantee as to how much non-EPIC funding will be available for non-EPIC tasks (those with Work Authorizations). 
8. Would the CEC prefer that Section 1 (Administrative Response) and Section 2 (Technical and Cost Proposal) be bound together or bound separately?
A: 	These may be provided separately if the content for both sections is too large to fit nicely in one bound document. However, Bidders should be careful to place all required information in the correct section for easy reference and to avoid the possibility of being unintentionally disqualified.	
9. Does the Word version need to be submitted as a single Word document or can it be submitted as multiple Word documents in a zip file?
A: 	It is acceptable to provide the information contained in the proposal in separate Word or Excel files.  	
10. On page 52 of the RFP manual, it states that resumes should be included as part of the Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources subsection of Section 2.  Would it be acceptable to include resumes in an appendix to Section 2 instead?
A: 	This is acceptable, as long as Section 2 of the proposal includes a reference on where to find the resumes. 	
11. Page 50 of the RFP manual stipulates that electronic files of the proposal must be in Microsoft Word XP (.doc or .docx format) and Excel Office Suite formats.  Please confirm that Word 2013 and Excel 2013 are also acceptable formats.
A:	All electronic files must be provided in a version that is compatible with the 2010 Microsoft Office Suite.
12. Where within Section 2 should references be placed?  The table on page 52 of the RFP manual indicates that references should be placed after Labor Hours by Personnel and Task, but page 53 seems to indicate that they should be placed within the Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources subsection.
A:	Page 52 shows the order in which proposals should be organized whereas page 53 provides an explanation of what will be evaluated within each scoring criterion section. Client References are an attachment (Attachment 6) and is listed separately on page 52 because it is a form and not provided in the narrative.	
13. Where within Section 2 should Labor Hours by Personnel and Task be placed?  The table on page 52 of the RFP manual indicates that Labor Hours by Personnel and Task should be placed after the Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources subsection, but page 53 seems to indicate that they should be placed within the Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources subsection.
A:	While this is one of the criteria that will be evaluated under the Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources subsection, Bidders will provide the information for the estimated total number of hours by personnel in the budget forms on the Direct Labor tab. In Addendum 2, the RFP manual is updated to delete Labor Hours by Personnel and Task from the table shown on page 52 since it will be included in the budget and not as a separate form or narrative.
14. What is the difference between Task 1 and Task 2? How much funding should be allocated to Task 2?
A:	Task 1 includes all of the duties that are required to perform agreement management oversight for the EPIC portion of the scope of work (Tasks 1, 3, 4, 5, 9, and 10). Task 2 includes these same oversight duties for the non-EPIC portion of the scope of work (Tasks 6, 7, and 8), but does not require a TAC. Bidders are asked to only provide a cost proposal for the EPIC portion of the scope of work as the amount of funding and work that may be issued for non-EPIC tasks is unknown at this time.
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15. The RFP stresses the need to calculate end-use saturations, floor stock, whole building energy intensities, and whole building load shapes.  The CEUS has traditionally calculated end-use energy intensities and end-use load shapes.  It appears that end-use analysis, estimation, and output are not part of the CEC’s scope for this project due to the Commission’s preference that the new CEUS maximize sample points in a greater level of geographic segmentation using lower-resolution data collection than prior CEUS efforts.  Is this interpretation of the RFP requirements correct or is the Commission also seeking estimation and reporting of end-use intensities?
A: 	This interpretation is correct. For Tasks 1, 3, 4, 5, 9, and 10, analyses focusing on end-use energy intensities and end-use load shapes are out of scope. The CEC hopes to develop the largest database of commercial buildings that is possible by optimizing the $8 million allocated to Tasks 1, 3, 4, 5, 9 and 10. The design should achieve very high statistical precision at the sample cell level and provide the capability for future post-stratification to accommodate uncertainty about methods of future disaggregation of energy demand forecasts required for energy planning.
16. Is the scope of task 7 (survey implementation in POU service territories) strictly limited to SMUD and LADWP (electric only)?
A: 	It is unlikely that POUs besides SMUD and LADWP will become part of this CEUS, but it can't be ruled out completely. Any work related to POUs will be described under separate work authorization(s) and should not be included in the response to this RFP.	
17. Regarding commercial floor space estimates, what references or resources are currently used by the CEC for these estimates?
A:	For forecasting purposes, the CEC relies on commercial floor space stock and additions from Dodge Data & Analytics (McGraw-Hill Construction) and the results from previous CEUS studies.	
18. What definition(s) and/or standards are currently used by the CEC with respect to defining and measuring building square footage? For example, does the CEC follow the measurement best practices defined by the Building Owners & Managers Association or the American Institute of Architects or default to floor area values from official property tax and title records?
A:	For forecasting purposes, the CEC does not have a single convention for measuring building square footage that has been used consistently over time. It is one of the goals of this CEUS to develop a convention for measuring floor space and include it in the data collection protocols for this survey.
19. The NAICS code mapping discussion on page 30 of the RFP manual states “the contractor will work with Commission staff to determine the feasibility of expanding the number of building types and revising the NAICS to building type mapping.” What other building types are of interest to the CEC?
A:	Typically, there are not enough resources available in a CEUS to consider stratifying the sample beyond the standard 12 building types currently in use. This design will provide sufficient sample size to allow examination of the costs and benefits of expanding the number of building types. This work will identify subcategories within the existing building types that are useful for improving the homogeneity of each building type through improving the NAICS mapping and for making more useful population estimates derived from CEUS. Examples of changes that have been considered include:
· Removing trade schools , small learning centers and art studios from college 
· Removing day care facilities from schools 
· Removing certain high energy use facilities from office
· Examine whether it is beneficial to continue the split between refrigerated and non-refrigerated warehouses
· Reducing the size of the miscellaneous building type
· Find the best classification for convenience stores with gas stations
· Disaggregation of retail into big box, strip malls and conventional malls
This list is not comprehensive, but it provides some insight into the types of issues staff would like to explore during the research design phase of this CEUS. 

20. For the 20 to 30 future forecast zones, will the CEC provide a GIS file or latitude/longitude coordinates for these forecasting zones?
A:	For the latest demand forecast, 20 forecasting zones were defined using a GIS file that contains information describing utility service areas and county boundaries. This file will be available for use in this project but may require modification to suit the needs of this project.  
21. For the previous CEUS, the CEC used a “Minimum Building Criteria” because it did not want to survey premises such as stand-alone parking garages, parking lot/outside lighting, pumps, do-it-yourself car washes, or other normally unoccupied facilities.  Will this be used again?  The previous criteria were as follows: Has to be a structure totally enclosed by walls that extend from the foundation to the roof and is intended for human access/occupancy; More than 50% of the premise floor space is used for a commercial purpose, i.e., not residential, industrial, manufacturing, or agricultural; and Must have a floor area of at least 101 square feet.
A: 	This CEUS will use a minimum building definition similar to the one described in this question. In general, we plan to keep the protocols used in the last CEUS unless a change is necessary to accommodate the new scope of work. During the data collection protocol development stage of the project, any convention or protocol used for forecasting or in previous CEUS studies will be subject to possible revision.
22. Page 40 of the RFP manual states that “the Energy Commission will not pay for sample points that are outside the commercial sector as defined by the NAICS code to building type map.” Does this mean the NAICS code from the utility billing frame, or the post-survey “Contractor Assigned NAICS”?  For example, a utility NAICS might be commercial, but the on-site survey could map to a different non-commercial NAICS.
A: 	This statement applies to premises that will become part of the final database of commercial customers in this CEUS. It means that sufficient care must be taken during the participant recruitment process to screen out non-commercial customers. While it might be difficult to assign a NAICS code during the recruitment stage, it should be possible to ascertain whether the site is part of the commercial sector before a survey is conducted. The CEC does not want to spend resources surveying non-commercial customers. Therefore, any premises with post-survey-assigned NAICS that are not part of the project NAICS code mapping will not be eligible for compensation. The CEC will review the contractor-assigned NAICS codes for accuracy and any non-commercial sites found during the review process must be replaced at the contractor’s expense.
23. Are detailed and calibrated energy models (using EnergyPlus) expected as an outcome from the project for the DSM evaluation?
A: 	No. There are no plans to collect the detailed building physical and operational data required to support engineering simulation models similar to EnergyPlus as part of Tasks 3 through 5.	
24. If energy models are created from the project, would they be made available to California ratepayers and researchers?
A: 	There are no plans to produce energy models for Tasks 1, 3, 4, 5, 9 and 10. All data collected or products derived from this project are subject to the confidentiality protections provided to any survey participant under California state law. The release of CEUS data is typically evaluated on a case-by-case basis and depends on the specific nature of the data requested and the terms under which it was collected. 
25. Would utility bills (monthly energy use data) be collected as part of survey and data collection?
A: 	Collecting historical electricity and natural gas use data for CEUS participants is one of the primary objectives for this project. However, the specific variables provided by participating utilities have not been determined at this point in time.		
26. Would smart meter data (15-minute electric data) be collected as part of survey and data collection?
A:	Collecting all time-of-use and interval-metered electricity use data for CEUS participants is one of the primary objectives for this project. However, the specific variables provided by participating utilities have not been determined at this point in time. 
27. With regard to scenario analysis, is the CEC interested in forecasting electricity demand under different models of dynamic pricing and/or net metering of distributed generation?
A:	The CEC conducts scenario analyses within the existing commercial forecasting model by applying different average prices and floor space projections. Other scenario adjustments are made through a separate econometric commercial building model. Although there are ongoing discussions regarding the impact of dynamic pricing and net metering on CEC’s demand forecast, it is not clear what role this CEUS will play in baseline data collection activities on these topics.
28. Will utility data collection include expenditures? Will it be possible to collect multiple years’ worth of data for a single site?
A:	Expenditures has not always been part of the utility information provided for previous CEUS efforts, but it is being considered for this CEUS. We can’t determine how many years of historical data will be provided by the utilities until those discussions take place this spring and summer.
29. Would the data collected to identify a building meter include definition of the tariff the meter is on?
A: 	The tariff structure for each survey participant is considered critical information and we intend on collecting this information. However, the specific variables provided by participating utilities have not been determined at this point in time. 
30. Will CAISO staff be part of the advisory committee, and will there be some discussion in the initial year of the project of the structure of the forecasting models that the CEUS is expected to inform?
A:	The technical advisory committee for this project may be solely comprised of CEC staff. There will be discussion of the structure of forecasting models that this CEUS is expected to inform during development of the research plan in Task 3. 

31. Will the IOU customer data be available?
A:	The CEC has not held formal discussions with the IOUs at this point in time. However, we fully expect to have IOU customer data available for this study.
	
32. Can you give us some details about the level of commitment the utilities are willing to contribute from their representatives who are willing to assist in data collection?  What level of commitment for the upcoming CEUS does the Energy Commission have from the utilities?
A:	The CEC has not held formal discussion with the utilities at this point in time. With respect to utility staff becoming involved in data collection first hand, the CEC is instructing Bidders to discuss whether this concept should be pursued and how their design could be flexible enough to incorporate this possibility. Each utility may have a different level of interest in pursuing data collection using their own staff. 

33. Should we make any assumptions now on the number of hours or the level of effort that the utilities will contribute in developing this proposal? 
A:	For bidding purposes, the CEC instructs Bidders to assume the inclusion of utility staff in the data collection process won't impact the number of on-sites or telephone surveys. At a minimum, the CEC is instructing Bidders to describe whether this concept should be pursued and how their design could be flexible enough to incorporate this possibility. Each utility may have a different level of interest in pursuing this possibility.

34. With respect to the potential supplemental funding, how is that anticipated to be procured? Is it necessary to come back to the CEC or will it be parallel contract? In essence, is the funding source in place?
A:	The CEC has allocated up to $13 million in spending authority which includes up to $5 million that could be encumbered into the resulting contract of this RFP if additional funding becomes available. The original $8 million dollars in EPIC funds are allocated to Tasks 1, 3, 4, 5, 9 and 10, and define the scope of work for the bids expected in response to this RFP. Any additional work in the IOU service areas, in the POU service areas or that is specific to natural gas data collection and analyses (Tasks 6, 7 and 8) will be described and funded in work authorizations developed under the resulting contract.		
35. This RFP asks for substantially more survey sites but does not explicitly state a requirement for collecting traditional end-use information. Is that true? 
A: 	For Tasks 1, 3, 4, 5, 9 and 10, analyses focusing on end-use energy intensities and end-use load shapes are out of scope. The CEC hopes to develop the largest possible database of commercial buildings by optimizing the $8 million allocated to these Tasks. The design should achieve very high statistical precision at the sample cell level and provide the capability for future post-stratification to accommodate uncertainty over the level of disaggregation of energy demand forecasts required for energy planning. Collecting information to support calculation of end-use fuel saturations, whole building energy intensities and annual whole building load profiles are major goals for this CEUS.
36. In regards to the POU part that also has a natural gas component to it, when dual fuel facilities are surveyed, are you anticipating that the natural gas part is to be included even if the natural gas part does not get funded? Are we expecting to collect natural gas fuel end-use data to calculate fuel saturations?
A: 	Contractors are not expected to perform gas-specific data collection with the $8,000,000 in EPIC funds allocated to Tasks 1, 3, 4, 5, 9 and 10, and costs for gas-specific data collection should not be included in this bid. However, funding for gas-specific data collection will be the CEC's top priority for additional work beyond the EPIC funded tasks. The CEC hopes to have additional funds in place for gas-specific data collection in the very beginning of the project to make field work and other analyses efficient. Any natural gas data collection or analyses will be described and funded under separate work authorizations.
37. In order to determine end-use saturations would submetering hardware be essential? Or is it possible to propose software-based end use disaggregation that uses whole building consumption as the data input (or a combination of both)?
A:	No, sub-metering hardware is not essential. For Tasks 1, 3, 4, 5, 9 and 10, analyses focusing on end-use energy intensities and end-use load shapes are out of scope. Collecting information to allow the calculation of end-use fuel saturations is a primary project objective.
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